














 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 

DATE:  September 9, 2011 
 
TO:   Marcia A. Leclerc, Mayor 
 
FROM:  Timothy Bockus, Acting Director of Public Works 
 
RE:   Federal Emergency Management Agency(FEMA)/State of Connecticut  
   Department of Emergency Management and Homeland Security   
   (DEMHS) Grant Application for Various Projects in East Hartford, CT 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Please accept this memorandum as a request to place the above-mentioned matter on the Town Coun-
cil agenda.  This matter involves the preparation and submission of grant applications to potentially 
fund a portion of the design and construction of various projects.  The grant funding is awarded to in-
dividual projects within a Connecticut Town on a competitive basis.  The projects that are anticipated 
to be applied for include but are not limited to the rehabilitation of the McAuliffe Park culvert and the 
rehabilitation of the Gorman Park Dam. 
 
 
I have attached to this memorandum a brief description of the projects, and a fact sheet for the grant 
program.  Please contact me should you have any questions or require additional information. 
 
 
cc:  Denise Horan, Town Engineer 
      James Kulpa, Assistant Town Engineer 



McAuliffe Park Culvert Rehabilitation: 

 

This project consists of the replacement of an existing culvert that utilizes two – three (3) 

foot diameter metal pipes to allow Goodwin Brook to flow through an embankment 

created during the construction of the culvert.  On top of the embankment there is a paved 

driveway that is used by pedestrians and provides an alternate means of access to the 

complex during emergencies. 

 

An inspection of the culvert revealed that there is a large depression forming on the crest 

of the embankment and the upstream side of the culvert was almost completely blocked 

with debris.  This depression is likely attributed to a failure of the metal piping due to 

corrosion.  Evidence of severe corrosion was noted during the inspection where the 

bottom of one of the pipes or flow-line had been completely corroded away.  This type of 

failure is common in metal pipes in that the bottom rots away and the flowing water 

erodes the surrounding soils creating a depression.  If left in its present state, the debris 

on the 

upstream side of the culvert considerably reduces the ability of the culvert to convey 

water creating a dam.  This coupled with a weakened embankment could lead to a 

catastrophic failure of the structure during high flow events. 

 

The proposed solution is to replace the culvert’s piping in its entirety and rebuild the 

embankment.  Additionally, erosion protection will be installed on the culvert 

embankment and within the channel upstream and downstream of the culvert. 

 

Gorman Park Dam Rehabilitation: 

 

This project includes the rehabilitation of the dam located at Gorman Park.  Historically 

the dam and its outlet structure have been used to control the water level of the pond 

located within Gorman Park.  The dam is also the only roadway crossing of Porter Brook 

providing access to the northern portion of the park property.  The dam consists of an 

earthen embankment with a concrete outlet structure that discharges to twin metal pipes. 

 

Over the course of the past two years a sink-hole has developed in the crest of the dam.  

The sinkhole appears to be caused by a loss of embankment soil through either a pipe 

joint failure or heavy corrosion of the bottom of a pipe.  The outlet structure is clogged 

with various sorts of debris and its capacity to pass stormwater has been compromised.  If 

left in its present state the dam will eventually breach and flood downstream properties. 

 

The proposed solution is to replace the outlet structure and its associated piping.  To do 

so, the pond’s water level will be dropped and the dam’s embankment will be excavated 

to replace the outlet structure and piping.  The dam’s embankment will be rebuilt and the 

roadway will be reconstructed on top of the dam. 
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Dannell P. Malloy 
Governor 

FACTFACTFACTFACT    

SHEETSHEETSHEETSHEET    

HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM (HMGP) 

SUMMARY 

 
As a result of the Presidential Disaster Declaration (FEMA-1958-DR-CT) the 

state of Connecticut is eligible to receive funding under the Hazard Mitigation 

Grant Program (HMGP).    The HMGP provides 75% Federal matching grants 

from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for the mitigation 

(reduction) of damages that result from natural disasters.  The goal of Hazard 

Mitigation is to reduce the amount of Federal and State assistance necessary 

after a major disaster by mitigating the effects of the disaster.  Hazard 

Mitigation measures traditionally include structural mitigation (e.g. acquisition 

or elevation of flood prone homes and businesses), small scale flood control 

projects and planning that leads to projects.   The most frequent and costly 

disasters in Connecticut are caused by flooding however the most recent 

disaster was the result of a record snowstorm that occurred on January 11 – 12, 

2011.  Therefore municipalities are also encouraged to propose projects to 

reduce the effects of heavy snowstorms in additional to other more traditional 

hazard mitigation projects.   

Updated on April 28, 2011 

The amount of funding available from the HMGP after a disaster is equal to 15% of the Public Assistance Damages caused by 

any Presidentially Declared Disaster that occurs in Connecticut.  HMGP funding is only available as a result of a Presidential 

Disaster Declaration and DEMHS is currently anticipating receiving 2 – 3 million dollars for the HMGP as a result of the record 

January snowstorm.  Eligible applicants (state agencies, municipalities and tribal nations) are strongly encouraged to consider 

applying for HMGP funding to mitigate natural hazards.  The deadline for submitting a letter of intent is June 15, 2011.     

HMGP Quick Facts:   
 
● Total Open HMGP Disaster Grants in Connecticut: 4 
 
● Total HMGP Funding for Connecticut: ≈ $ 5.2 Million 
 
● Funding Passed Through to Towns Thus Far: ≈ $ 2.3 Million 
 
● Types of Eligible Projects in Connecticut Include: 
 
     ⇒ Home and Business Elevation Projects 
 

     ⇒ Home and Business Acquisition Projects 
 

     ⇒ Stormwater Projects (e.g. Culvert Replacement) that  
           Reduce Flood Damage to Buildings 

 

     ⇒ Small Scale Flood Control Projects Such as Levees 
 

     ⇒ Snowload Building Design Code Upgrades 
 

     ⇒ Operations Plans for Snow Emergencies 
  

HMGP FAQ’’s 

 
● Due Date for Letter of Intent: June 15, 2011. 
 
● Federal Funding Available: Approximately 2 – 3 Million 
 
● Amount of Federal Funding: 75% of Project Cost 
 
● Match Required: 25% (Cash / Some In-Kind Services) 
 
● Source of In-Kind Services: Must be Non-Federal 
 
● Management and Administration: 1.89% of Federal Grant 
 
● Eligible Applicants: State, Municipal and Tribal Entities 
 
● Duration of Grant: 3 years 
 
● Administration of Grant by the Department of Emergency   
   Management and Homeland Security in coordination with  
   Municipalities and Building Owners.    
 
 



Listed below the types of projects that are typically eligible for Hazard Mitigation Grant 

Program (HMGP) funding and a timeline for the application process.  Also listed are 

project types that are not typically approved under the HMGP.  Please feel free to share 

this information with any towns if you get any questions about the HMGP. 

 
1. The amount of HMGP funding that will be available as a result of Disaster #1958 will be 

approximately 2.4 million dollars. 

2. Letters of Intent (containing a brief description of the project and a rough cost estimate) 

are due by June 15
th

, 2011. 

3. Application packages will be sent to all towns that submit a letter of intent. 

4. Although this most recent disaster was the result of a record snowstorm on January 

12
th

, 2011, all hazard types will be eligible in applications for HMGP funding including: 

a. Enhancement of building regulations to strengthen codes for flat roofs. 

b. Operational snow clearance planning for roads and buildings. 

c. Mitigation of Flooding through the acquisition or elevation of homes, businesses 

and public buildings. 

d. Minor flood control projects such as berms and levees that protect insurable 

buildings such as homes, businesses and public buildings. 

e. Wind mitigation along the coast (e.g. storm shutters and hurricane clips). 

f. Culvert and bridge reconstruction that results in the reduction or elimination of 

flooding to insurable buildings. 

g. Limited warning systems that provide early warning of a natural hazard (e.g. 

Flood Warning Systems). 

h. Limited public outreach as part of a project to mitigate the effects of winter 

storms (e.g. brochures on clearing snow from homes and businesses). 

5. The following projects are not typically approved under the HMGP: 

a. Roadway reconstruction. 

b. Culvert upgrades that do not prevent or reduce flooding to insurable structures. 

c. Mitigation or operations plans that do not lead to projects or new operational 

procedures. 

d. Snow removal costs. 

e. Snow removal equipment. 

 

If any towns have questions about projects that do not appear on the above lists, please 

have them send me an email with their project proposal to douglas.glowacki@ct.gov 
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